
 

December 13, 2016 

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 

The Honorable Loretta Lynch 
Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 
Washington, DC 20530 
 

The Honorable James B. Comey, Jr.  
Director  
Federal Bureau of Investigation  
935 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 
Washington, D.C. 20535  

 
Dear Attorney General Lynch and Director Comey: 
 
 In the summer of 2015, the Senate Judiciary Committee began an inquiry into paid fetal 
tissue transfers involving Planned Parenthood.  The Committee has since obtained and reviewed 
more than 20,000 pages of information from the organizations involved, and engaged in detailed 
discussions with the attorneys for those organizations.  The investigation has culminated in a 
Majority Staff Report to the Committee.  That report is attached for your review. 
 

The report documents the failure of the Department of Justice, across multiple 
administrations, to enforce the law that bans the buying or selling of human fetal tissue (42 
U.S.C. § 289g-2) with even a single prosecution.  It also documents substantial evidence 
suggesting that the specific entities involved in the recent controversy, and/or individuals 
employed by those entities, may have violated that law.  Moreover, that evidence is contained 
entirely in those entities’ own records, which were voluntarily provided to the Committee and 
are detailed in the report. 

 
Accordingly, I am referring the paid fetal tissue practices of the following organizations, 

as outlined in the report, to the FBI and the Department of Justice for investigation and potential 
prosecution:  
 

 StemExpress, LLC; 
 Advanced Bioscience Resources, Inc.; 
 Novogenix Laboratories, LLC; 
 Planned Parenthood Mar Monte; 



Attorney General Lynch and Director Comey 
December 13, 2016 

 Planned Parenthood Los Angeles; 
 Planned Parenthood Northern California; and 
 Planned Parenthood of the Pacific Southwest.  

 
In addition, as also described in the attached report, it appears that the Planned 

Parenthood Federation of America learned that its affiliates engaging in paid fetal tissue 
programs were not following the policies and procedures it had put in place to ensure compliance 
with 42 U.S.C. § 289g-2.  However, instead of exercising its oversight procedures to bring them 
into compliance, it contacted the affiliates involved and then altered those oversight procedures 
in a manner that allowed the affiliates’ conduct to continue.  While the Committee does not have 
all the details of what transpired between the Planned Parenthood Federation of America and 
these affiliates, the facts uncovered raise a reasonable suspicion that these organizations, and/or 
individuals employed by them, may have engaged in a conspiracy to violate the fetal tissue law 
(18 U.S.C. § 371).  Therefore, I am referring the practices of these organizations, as outlined in 
the report, to the FBI and the Department of Justice for investigation and potential prosecution 
for this offense, as well. 

 
Please contact the Committee if you determine that you need to seek access to unredacted 

copies of any of the records necessary to further your investigation into these matters. 
 

If you have any questions, please contact Jason Foster of my Committee staff at (202) 
224-5225. Thank you for your attention to this important matter. 
 

Sincerely, 

       

Charles E. Grassley 
 Chairman     
 Senate Committee on the Judiciary 

cc:  The Honorable Patrick J. Leahy 
Ranking Member  
Senate Committee on the Judiciary 
 
 

 


